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          1  COMMITTEE ON FINANCE

          2                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Good Morning.

          3  Welcome to today's Finance Committee Hearing.  My

          4  name is David Weprin, I'm Chair of the Finance

          5  Committee.  I'll introduce my colleagues that are

          6  here and they are going to be coming in one by one,

          7  but we should have a quorum momentarily.

          8                 On the far right is Council Member

          9  Dennis Gallagher from Queens.  We are working our

         10  way across.  Council Member, Minority Leader Jim

         11  Oddo from Staten Island.  Next to me is Jim Caras,

         12  Counsel to the Finance Committee.  Council Member

         13  Gale Brewer from Manhattan.  Council Member

         14  Christine Quinn from Manhattan.  Council Member Bill

         15  DeBlasio from Brooklyn.  Council Member Helen Sears

         16  from Queens, and Council Member Robert Jackson from

         17  Manhattan, and Majority Leader, Council Member Joel

         18  Rivera from the Bronx.

         19                 Today we have a number of items on

         20  the agenda.  We will be considering MN-3, the Fiscal

         21  2004 Expense Budget Modification.  The Expense

         22  Modification which is before you would transfer

         23  funds between various units of appropriation

         24  totalling over $780 million.  The modification

         25  should not result in any service reduction.
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          2                 In fact, when compared to the

          3  original version of the modification, this

          4  modification restores $5.4 million in funds for

          5  Instructional Services to CUNY, it restores $607,000

          6  for Mental Health Services, so that there are no

          7  service reductions. It ensures that there will be no

          8  TB Clinic closures in Fiscal '04, it restores

          9  $200,000 to Health and Hospitals Corporation for

         10  Child Health Clinics, with the understanding that

         11  HHC will come up with the additional funding for the

         12  clinics.

         13                 We will also be considering two

         14  Preconsidered Intros today.  One of them will extend

         15  the City's Tax Lien Sale Program until March 1,

         16  2006.  It does not make any substantive changes to

         17  the program, but gives the Department of Finance the

         18  authority to continue to conduct tax lien sales

         19  under the current provision until that time.

         20                 The second piece of legislation would

         21  delay the levying of the Absentee Landlord Surcharge

         22  until July 1, 2006.

         23                 Finally, we will set up, set the date

         24  by Resolution for our hearing on the local law to

         25  expand the Madison Avenue BID in Manhattan.  The
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          2  date for the Hearing of all persons interested in

          3  the expansion of the Madison Avenue BID will be on

          4  April 21st at 10:00 a.m. in this room.

          5                 We have been joined by a few of my

          6  colleagues.  To my immediate left is our Deputy

          7  Majority Leader, Council Member Bill Perkins from

          8  Manhattan, and we have Council Member Simcha Felder

          9  from Brooklyn.

         10                 We will now hear from our Deputy

         11  Director of the Finance Division, Staci Emanuel, on

         12  the Budget Mod.  Ms. Emanuel.

         13                 MS. EMANUEL: Good morning. Before you

         14  you have MN-3. It transfers $781 million between UAs

         15  and across agencies.  This Budget Modification

         16  recognizes new needs primarily in re-estimates from

         17  Medicaid and Public Assistance.  It recognizes new

         18  needs in overtime.  It recognizes $75 million for

         19  the second half of the year for their Private Bus

         20  Franchise.  It also restores $8 million for Senior

         21  Meals Programs that was part of the restructuring of

         22  Social Services. It was part of the adopted '04

         23  Budget, it restores this $8 million.

         24                 Part of this mod., the original mod.,

         25  included cuts, as the Chair had mentioned before, to
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          2  CUNY, $5.4 million.  That has been restored.

          3  Restorations are $607,000 for Mental Health.  There

          4  are partial restorations of $200,000 for the Child

          5  Health Clinics, with the understanding that HHC is

          6  going to enroll additional kids in order to make up

          7  the additional revenues to offset the remaining

          8  cuts.  There is additional funding to keep the TB

          9  Clinics open, using federal funds.  And I think

         10  that's about it, as far as to recap the mod.

         11                 In your package you have a summary of

         12  the from's and to's what the net impact on the

         13  agencies are with details of the particular budget

         14  items.  So I'll just open it up to questions at this

         15  point.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Okay. We have the

         17  first question from Council Member Oddo.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Thank you, Mr.

         19  Chair.  So this is no new additional revenue.  It's

         20  taking savings from some agencies and shifting them

         21  over to other agencies.

         22                 MS. EMANUEL: Yes.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: But within that

         24  shift, the new needs, as you call them, they are,

         25  would you call them discretionary?  Would you call
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          2  them mandatory?   I mean, some of these new needs

          3  are really priorities.  They are not we have to, we

          4  are mandated by a rule, regulation or law to fund

          5  this; this is a priority decision?

          6                 MS. EMANUEL: Well, I mean spending is

          7  higher in particular areas.  You know, with Medicaid

          8  and Public Assistance, I mean, spending is higher

          9  and you have to cover those expenditures.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: But within that,

         11  would you say that some of these things are --

         12                 MS. EMANUEL: Some of the new needs.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: -- Some of the

         14  new needs are someone's priorities?

         15                 MS. EMANUEL: Some of them are

         16  mandated, you have to cover the new needs and --

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: And some are

         18  discretionary?

         19                 MS. EMANUEL: Yes.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Okay.

         21                 The Medicaid number, am I reading

         22  that correctly?  Medicaid assistance on page 29 of

         23  MN-3? That's $248 million.

         24                 MS. EMANUEL: $248 million.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: That's a $250
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          2  million mod, in terms of giving more money to the

          3  Medicaid Program.

          4                 MS. EMANUEL: Right.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Is that the

          6  biggest Medicaid mod that you've seen in your years

          7  in the Council?

          8                 MS. EMANUEL: That I can remember, I

          9  mean it's a large mod, but we generally -- I'm not

         10  sure if it's the largest.

         11                 Is it the largest?

         12                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Larger.

         13                 MS. EMANUEL: It's been large.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: It's been larger

         15  than that? That's a huge number.  Yes, I understand

         16  it's Medicaid, that's the point.

         17                 MS. EMANUEL: That's a mandated

         18  expense.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: I think that we

         20  as a body at some point have to kind of use the

         21  bully pulpit.  But I understand that we don't

         22  control Medicaid, but for every dollar that we

         23  continue to give to Medicaid, is a dollar that we

         24  have to either raise a tax, or find a cut somewhere

         25  else.  You know, I understand that this is in the
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          2  purview of the State and the Federal government, but

          3  the City Council should be using our institution as

          4  a bully pulpit to say enough is enough.  This is a

          5  black hole, it's a monster, it sucks up money and if

          6  you think it doesn't impact your district, you're

          7  nuts.

          8                 I've got a firehouse that sits empty,

          9  it doesn't have an Engine Company, in South Shore

         10  Staten Island, and if you think that's not related

         11  to the fact that we are spending in this mod.

         12  another $250 million in Medicaid, you're out of your

         13  minds.  When are we going to say as a body, we

         14  talked about this in the Republican Delegation

         15  during the tax cut, you got four non-service areas

         16  that continue to grow unchecked and we're doing our

         17  best to cut clinics and cut firehouses and cut this

         18  and it's a never-ending game.  It's a battle we

         19  can't win.

         20                 I would just say, Mr. Chairman, I

         21  mean, if no one else in this building wants to, then

         22  the City Council should use itself as a bully pulpit

         23  and hold some people on both sides of the aisle,

         24  their feet to the fire, and say this is it.  This is

         25  insane.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: We have been

          3  joined by a number of our colleagues since the last

          4  round of introductions.  We have Council Member

          5  Margarita Lopez from Manhattan; our Majority Leader,

          6  Council Member, Leroy Comrie from Queens.  We have

          7  Council Member Eric Gioia from Queens, who I want to

          8  point out for the record was here at ten o'clock,

          9  although others were not.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: I was.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN:  Council Member

         12  Brewer were you here at tem o'clock?

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: I was here at

         14  9:30.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: I was here at

         16  10:00.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA: We'd like gold

         18  stars, Mr. Chairman.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: He was here

         20  early.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: I demand an

         22  apology from the Chair.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: What would you

         24  like an apology for?

         25                 Council Member Quinn has a question.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: It's not so

          3  much of a question, more as a statement.  Just to add

          4  on a little bit to the Minority Leader's rant.  In

          5  addition, the so-called relief in the budget this

          6  year from the Governor around Medicaid actually

          7  isn't relief for the City at all.  The way the

          8  restructuring has been proposed by the Governor,

          9  will not relieve us of money that we have to pay

         10  into it.  In fact, it will cost us money that we get

         11  from the State, because the public institutions, the

         12  public hospitals, are particularly singled out in

         13  the restructuring.  And actually deep in the

         14  Medicaid Governor's Plan is a particularly targeted

         15  cut at publicly-run nursing home facilities, which

         16  will have a devastating effect potentially on the

         17  Coler-Goldwater facility on Roosevelt Island and

         18  potentially the McKinney Rehabilitation Center.

         19                 So in addition to everything that the

         20  Minority Leader said, which is definitely true,

         21  there is a particularly even mean-spirited tone to

         22  the Governor's Plan in that it really singles out

         23  for extra cuts those places that take anybody

         24  regardless of ability to pay. That's it.

         25                 I just want to thank the Finance
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          2  staff, in particular Peter Bruno and Larian Angelo,

          3  for their very aggressive work around making sure

          4  that the health cuts were significantly limited in

          5  this budget modification.

          6                 It is very important to note that the

          7  City had proposed to completely close two

          8  tuberculosis clinics; one that is on the boarder of

          9  Council Member Boyland and Council Member Barron's

         10  District, the other that's in Council Member

         11  Sanders' District.  And although they were trying to

         12  come up with plans to somehow make up for this

         13  service, they were unable to do it and based I think

         14  on the advocacy on the Council, they had to take

         15  that cut off the table.  I'm sure we will see it

         16  again come next year, but it is off the table now

         17  and those two clinics will stay open who are --

         18  those clinics are in two neighborhoods that have

         19  particularly high rates of tuberculosis, given the

         20  Department of Health's most recent neighborhood

         21  profiles.

         22                 Also, I should say that, as is

         23  mentioned, the cut to the Child's Health Clinics

         24  that had been proposed to be just shy of half a

         25  million dollars has been reduced by $200,000. The
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          2  amount that's left there will actually not end up

          3  being a cut, we don't believe, because HHC is

          4  somewhat ahead of target as it relates to enrolling

          5  children in the Child's Health Clinics in Public

          6  Health Programs.  Some of their clinics that were at

          7  70 percent, not 90 percent, which is their in-house

          8  target, are now much closer to 90 percent.

          9                 At our hearing on the Preliminary

         10  Budget, HHC actually testified that they thought

         11  they were at the level where they could make up the

         12  entire 445 based on enrollment.  That probably isn't

         13  the case, so us advocating with OMB and the

         14  Department of Health to get that cut taken down,

         15  creates a scenario where there will not be any

         16  impact in service in this Fiscal Year, which I think

         17  is very important, and also important that we got

         18  the Department to, by taking the money down, admit

         19  that it would have had an impact in services.

         20                 Again, we are going to see cuts to

         21  Child's Health Clinics proposed in a massive way in

         22  Fiscal Year '05, there is almost a $5 million cut to

         23  the Health Clinics that's in the Budget

         24  so this isn't going away, but it's very important

         25  not to have service terminated in the middle of a
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          2  fiscal year and to leave this for us to advocate on

          3  fully in the full budget process.

          4                 So I want to thank my colleagues for

          5  their support. We did, you know.  Some press

          6  conferences on this before the New Year, which

          7  people were very helpful and also I know that Larian

          8  and Peter really made this a do-or-die issue in our

          9  negotiations with OMB and I want to thank them for

         10  that.  And unfortunately look forward to our

         11  continued work on the TB Clinics and the Child's

         12  Health Clinics.  Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: We have also been

         14  joined by Council Member Madeline Provenzano from

         15  the Bronx.

         16                 Council Member DeBlasio.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER DEBLASIO: Thank you,

         18  Mr. Chairman.  I want to congratulate you and Larian

         19  and her team, and Chris and Margarita and everyone

         20  who, and Charles, everyone who has had a hand in

         21  getting these potential cuts restored.

         22                 I just wanted to make sure Staci, I'm

         23  getting the Chapter and Verse right here.  So on the

         24  CUNY, potential CUNY cuts that we heard about in

         25  Steering I guess two weeks ago, you were saying all
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          2  that was put back.

          3                 MS. EMANUEL: Yes.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER DEBLASIO: All the

          5  Health, but for the small amount that Chris was just

          6  discussing.  So that's the only place that was not

          7  restored; is that correct?

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: If I could

          9  answer?

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER DEBLASIO: Bounce it

         11  that way.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Well, there are

         13  some things that have been changed in the Health

         14  Budget that result in savings.  They are not

         15  reductions per se, they have restructured and

         16  reformulated programs.  So you will see savings in

         17  Department of Health and Mental Hygiene on the

         18  Public Health side, begin on the Mental Health side,

         19  but on the Public Health side that will result in

         20  savings, they are not service cuts --

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER DEBLASIO: Right.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Restructuring

         23  ways things work.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER DEBLASIO: But things

         25  you are comfortable with in the greater scheme of
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          2  things.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Yes.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER DEBLASIO: So that's

          5  the Health side, a small cut that you can live with

          6  for this Fiscal Year.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: We don't think

          8  it's going to be a cut because the cut overall was

          9  445, they took it down 200, to 245, but their

         10  insurance enrollment is up, and it's going to make

         11  up that difference.  So for this year it really ends

         12  up being a wash, even.

         13                 MS. EMANUEL: So what was added back

         14  was $200,000 in tax levy.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: So what we

         16  think the short-fall would have been around --

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER DEBLASIO: Right. Okay.

         18  So that makes sense.  And then on the Mental Health

         19  side, I just want to make sure, are you saying full

         20  restoration?

         21                 MS. EMANUEL: We start $607,000, which

         22  was the service cuts.  There was a funding shift of

         23  $1.6 million that, you know we let go, it's no

         24  reduction in service, it's just the way it's being

         25  funded will be different.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER DEBLASIO: So is it a

          3  fair statement to say, this is part one, and I have

          4  a part two question.  Is it fair to say essentially,

          5  no reduction in service for this fiscal year on the

          6  Higher Ed on the Health and Mental Health pieces

          7  that were the highlight pieces previously when we

          8  discussed this mod.

          9                 MS. EMANUEL: That's right.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER DEBLASIO: Then new

         11  business, if you will, in this mod., did I hear you

         12  correctly say $8 million was restored to the

         13  Department for the Aging?

         14                 MS. EMANUEL: Aging, yes.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER DEBLASIO: And again,

         16  let me understand exactly what that $8 million

         17  achieves.

         18                 MS. EMANUEL: Last year on the Budget

         19  there was a proposal to restructure Social Services.

         20  The whole savings of $75 million, it involved

         21  various agencies, one of them was the Department for

         22  the Aging.  There was an $8 million dollar in

         23  savings from food.  They thought they can deliver

         24  this service cheaper than they had been.  There has

         25  been a lot of discussion this year on how they were
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          2  going to achieve the savings, they were working on

          3  the RFP in the Bronx.  They are not going to

          4  complete this process by the end of the year, they

          5  are not going to achieve this $8 million in savings

          6  so they have restored this funding.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER DEBLASIO: So they are

          8  going back to the status quo, that's operating funds

          9  that's directly support Senior Centers; is that

         10  right?

         11                 MS. EMANUEL:  Right.  The meal

         12  programs were operating through the Senior Centers.

         13  They were providing meals to home-bound seniors.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER DEBLASIO: Okay.  And

         15  then --

         16                 MS. EMANUEL: The Senior Centers and

         17  through Meals-On-Wheels.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER DEBLASIO: All right.

         19  I see, obviously, there is a number of items in

         20  here, I guess I'm just looking for the kernel of

         21  this.  Is there any other major restoration or major

         22  cut back that affects services?   I see obviously a

         23  lot of shifting and a lot of new revenue replace

         24  something.  I don't think we're going to worry about

         25  that too much.  But I think the point is, is there
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          2  any other service impact cut, or service improvement

          3  that we should know about?

          4                 MS. EMANUEL: No.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER DEBLASIO: Okay.  Thank

          6  you, Mr. Chair.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Council Member

          8  Brewer.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Thank you.  On

         10  the revenue side or the postponement of the Absentee

         11  Landlord Tax, which makes sense, but the question

         12  is, per the requests of Finance in our District, we

         13  sent out a letter telling people what the current

         14  status was a few months ago.  Do we know if there

         15  will be any kind of education process, because I do

         16  think that those folks who have a potential tax to

         17  pay in '07 FY, will be confused.  So who is going to

         18  unconfuse them?

         19                 MS. EMANUEL: I think this is going to

         20  come up later on when we do the legislation on

         21  Absentee Landlord, but right now we're doing the

         22  Expense Mod.  So if you want to hold the question

         23  until we testify on that Absentee Landlord

         24  legislation.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: All right.
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          2  That's fine.  It's just if it's in the newspapers

          3  tomorrow, that there is some relationship, I just

          4  maintain that people will be confused.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Council Member

          6  Perkins.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: I wanted to

          8  have some discussion on the Absentee Landlord piece,

          9  as well, but I guess we're going to have to wait a

         10  little bit.

         11                 But I just also wanted to join my

         12  colleagues in commending you and the staff for the

         13  negotiations that have managed to restore everything

         14  in terms of the services, and I am especially

         15  pleased by the $5.4 that was restored with regards

         16  to the CUNY cuts.  Of course we still have a bunch

         17  of other cuts in front of us, that obviously we are

         18  going to have to deal with but at least in this

         19  Budget mod. we wouldn't have to deal with them now.

         20  In fact, some of these cuts, since they are mid-term

         21  cuts, would probably be doubled if you absolutely

         22  had to. So, I am glad to see that.  Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Council Member

         24  Gallagher.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER GALLAGHER: Thank you.
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          2                 I don't think I have any questions

          3  per se, but I just have maybe one comment and I am

          4  not going to follow up on the rant of my Minority

          5  Leader, but I will mention that he was absolutely

          6  correct with regards to Medicaid spending, but I

          7  would like to talk about a different issue.

          8                 Today what we are doing in this

          9  Budget mod is we are recognizing $245 million in

         10  debt savings, which includes $110 million that was

         11  present from October, and it's clear based upon the

         12  conversation between the Minority Leader and Staci,

         13  that some of these needs and some of these things

         14  that are in this modification are new needs that

         15  have been prioritized.

         16                 Unfortunately, this Mod. is not going

         17  to include, despite the fact that there is money

         18  available, funding to reopen the fire houses

         19  throughout the City of New York, it's something that

         20  I think it should have and it should be prioritized

         21  as a need and hopefully as we approach the next

         22  Budget process that we in the Council can fight to

         23  restore it.

         24                 Now, Engine Company 293, which

         25  affects my District was reopened, but seeing the
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          2  response time indicators in the daily papers shows

          3  the need to continue to fight to restore the engine

          4  companies throughout the City of New York.  Thank

          5  you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: We have been

          7  joined by Council Member Fidler from Brooklyn.

          8                 Council Member Sears.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Thank you, Mr.

         10  Chair.  I do have a question, but I just wanted to

         11  say first thank you to the Chair and to the staff

         12  for the work that has been done on this modification

         13  and restoring, thanks to the efforts of the Chair to

         14  the Health Committee, Christine Quinn, restoring so

         15  much in the Health Care area.

         16                 But I do have to say that I agree

         17  with Councilman Oddo that the Medicaid is

         18  sky-rocketing such that we sacrifice many other

         19  things.  I think it behooves this Committee to

         20  actually advocate and that has to be a top priority

         21  that the State remove what I consider to be a very

         22  punitive thing by that 25 percent that we must

         23  contribute to the Medicaid.  I think that is an

         24  outrage.

         25                 My question is:  Office of the Chief
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          2  Medical Examiner, 116, it was my understanding way

          3  back that they did have their backlogs in the rape

          4  cases and they were behind in them; can you explain

          5  what this means by reduction in Personal Services?

          6                 MS. EMANUEL: Is this on page 57?

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  It's on page

          8  60. Sorry, I meant to give that to you.  $869,000,

          9  am I reading this correctly?

         10                 MR. BRUNO: Hi.  I'm Peter Bruno,

         11  Assistant Director for Health and Services.

         12                 That reduction is associated with the

         13  delay of the facility, it's a capital delay.  So

         14  their staff that they had planned to hire, that they

         15  do not need to hire with the facility not being

         16  on-line at present.  When that facility comes

         17  on-line, that money will be restored to the Budget.

         18  There is a large increase to the Office of Chief

         19  Medical Examiner in next year's Budget that will

         20  encompass that money.  So what we see coming out now

         21  is due to the delay. They don't need that money in

         22   '04.  As of '05 they will consider whether they

         23  need it to go forward, because there is still a

         24  delay on that particular project.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Right.  Do
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          2  they have any idea when that is going to be nearly

          3  completed?

          4                 MR. BRUNO: Actually the last estimate

          5  we got was November 2006.  That's why I said in '05

          6  we need to revisit whether that money needs to be

          7  there or not.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Okay.  Thank

          9  you.

         10                 Thank you, Mr. Chair.

         11                 MR. BRUNO: You're welcome.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Council Member

         13  Lopez.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Thank you, sir.

         15                 I just want to make a comment that I

         16  think that all of us should be aware and the City of

         17  New York should be aware.  We are having a crisis in

         18  the City about providing Mental Health Services to

         19  the citizens of this City.  Shortly ago, the New

         20  York Times had an article indicating clearly that

         21  the fire fighters and the EMS and the personnel that

         22  had to deal with September 11th, right now is

         23  showing the signs of all of the complications that

         24  come out of that terrorist attack.

         25                 In between those issues, you will
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          2  find post traumatic stress disorder, suffering from

          3  the loss of many people that they witnessed to die,

          4  et cetera, et cetera.  I want to point out two

          5  things:  In regards to the philosophy that we've

          6  seen from the Health and Mental Hygiene Department,

          7  and this is something that I have questioned over

          8  and over again, the Commissioners, we've seen a

          9  tendency of moving monies that currently pay for

         10  certain services from the City of New York, from the

         11  tax levy dollars into the Medicaid Budget.

         12  Personally, I don't see anything wrong with that.

         13  The problem is that at the same time that we see

         14  that happening, the Commissioners come here one

         15  after another and have testified under oath that

         16  they know that the services have not been provided,

         17  that we desperately need Mental Health Services for

         18  people in general, particularly for children in this

         19  City.

         20                 Yesterday ACS testified that the

         21  children under their care are not receiving the

         22  proper Mental Health Services that they need and we

         23  understand collectively from the Commissioners to

         24  the City Council that the Mental Health Services

         25  don't exist in New York City and on top of that I
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          2  want to point out that the Governor make a decision

          3  in not to request the extension of the money of

          4  Liberty funds from FEMA to treat people due to the

          5  incident of the terrorist attack and to give them

          6  Mental Health Services that they need now. Two years

          7  after is when these problems will surface.

          8                 He decide not to extend the request

          9  of that money, and everybody in the City should

         10  understand that Oklahoma, when the terrorist attack

         11  happened in there, Oklahoma got seven years of

         12  Mental Health Services for the people of Oklahoma,

         13  from FEMA money to treat the needs of people at the

         14  time.

         15                 In the City we have not even

         16  requested the money to be extended to us and the

         17  gross of the people that right now are showing the

         18  consequences of that are police officers, fire

         19  fighters, EMS, that we've seen the symptomatology

         20  coming out and as a result they are losing their job

         21  because they are becoming addicted to alcohol, which

         22  is the only medication that they are having access

         23  to at this point.

         24                 Then I also want to point out that

         25  the Administration is deciding to switch the
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          2  Services into Medicaid dollars and not necessarily

          3  is anything wrong with that in totality but where is

          4  the philosophy and the framework in which the

          5  Department of Health and Mental Hygiene has about

          6  what is the commitment of the City of New York in

          7  regards of the policy of health for the City

          8  residents.  When we are constantly swishing the

          9  money there and the City admits that we have a

         10  problem with Medicaid dollars based on the COPS

         11  concept on the capitated dollars.  We have a

         12  problem.  The Council needs to look at this and we

         13  need to have a way.  I am glad that we are saving

         14  the cuts that was proposed to begin with and thank

         15  you for your leadership on this Mr. Chairman.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you.

         17                 Council Member Fidler.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Thank you, Mr.

         19  Chairman.  I have two areas here.  Let me start with

         20  the Department of Youth and Community Development.

         21                 I know DYCD is about to do a concept

         22  paper on the Out-of-School Time Initiative.  That

         23  was something that I think the Budget that we passed

         24  last year contemplated would have happened already

         25  and that explains the $38 million that is being

                                                            29

          1  COMMITTEE ON FINANCE

          2  transferred back to ACS to continue the current

          3  programs that had been anticipated be moved and

          4  realigned at DYCD.

          5                 However at the time we removed this

          6  funding from ACS to DYCD, there was $15 million more

          7  and it was the anticipated restructuring of the

          8  Out-of-School Time Program that allowed us to book a

          9  $15 million savings.  Since the OST transfer hasn't

         10  happened yet, the restructuring hasn't happened yet,

         11  how is ACS going to continue to administer its

         12  current programs without the $15 million; does

         13  anyone here know the answer to that?

         14                 MS. EMANUEL: Fifteen million dollars

         15  has been restored in non-City funds.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: So that money

         17  is coming from other than DYCD.

         18                 MS. EMANUEL: Right.  In other than

         19  tax levy.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: All right.

         21  Well, that's a good answer.

         22                 The other question I have has to do

         23  with our District Attorneys.  When we had OMB in for

         24  our Finance hearing, I raised questions in

         25  particular about the Buy-Back Program that we
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          2  reluctantly agreed to last year to allow District

          3  Attorneys to try and reduce the Budget cuts, what I

          4  would call draconian budget cuts they had been

          5  receiving. I asked OMB if they could tell us how

          6  much the DAs have actually bought back through this

          7  program.  They promised that we would have an

          8  answer.  Have we gotten that answer?

          9                 MS. EMANUEL: No, we haven't gotten an

         10  answer yet.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Well, I just

         12  want, you know, I mean, if we had the ability to

         13  pick and choose in this Budget Modification, I'd

         14  vote the biggest, loudest no on the District

         15  Attorneys cuts that I possibly could.  The fact of

         16  the matter is this Buy-Back Program, which we still

         17  don't even know if it has allowed them to buy back a

         18  dollar, is the most ridiculous, outrageous way to

         19  run a Justice System.

         20                 I will repeat what I said to OMB.

         21  There is going to be a day when a Defense Attorney

         22  is going to stand up and tell the jury that the only

         23  reason that his client, or her client is being

         24  prosecuted is because the DAs made an estimate of

         25  the revenue that they would be able to buy back by
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          2  prosecuting this person instead of somebody else.

          3  It's a horse's ass, stupid, ass-backwards way to run

          4  a Criminal Justice System and we ought not to be

          5  cutting the District Attorneys' Budgets like this.

          6                 And if there were any way in the

          7  world that we could pull the District Attorney

          8  Modification out of this, I would, until OMB comes

          9  back, tells us what this program has or has not

         10  bought, because I doubt it's bought a dime for

         11  anyone other than the Manhattan DA.  It's an outrage

         12  and I think the Council ought to start to say so

         13  now, so we can do something about it in the upcoming

         14  Budget.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: We are now going

         16  to entertain questions about the Absentee Landlord

         17  Surcharge.

         18                 You have questions on that, Council

         19  Member Brewer?

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: The same

         21  question which is that some of us pose a request of

         22  Finance --

         23                 MS. EMANUEL: I think they are going

         24  to get someone to come in and testify on the

         25  Absentee Landlord.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Does anybody have

          3  any questions on the Tax Lien Sales?

          4                 Council Member Fidler.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: I apologize

          6  for coming to class late, could you explain the

          7  Absentee Landlord Surcharge and why we are

          8  postponing it?

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: That's what we

         10  are going to talk about now Lew, I thought.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Oh.  Well, is

         12  that what we are up to?

         13                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Well it's --

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: It's one of my

         15  questions.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: We're postponing

         17  it as part in the mid-agreement because had we

         18  imposed it now, the way the Department of Finance

         19  had contemplated administering it would have meant

         20  that they would have gotten a bill for the entire

         21  year in June, May or June, and then they would have

         22  gotten a bill for the following year in July and in

         23  effect what it would have really been is instead of

         24  a 25 percent surcharge, it would have been over 100

         25  percent surcharge and we would have been inundated
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          2  with --

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: So because the

          4  Department of Finance couldn't figure out a way to

          5  administer a tax proposal we passed last year, we're

          6  going to blow $44 million out of the Budget; is that

          7  what's we're saying?

          8                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Well, it's not a

          9  question of blowing $44 million, you know we've

         10  gotten additional revenue from a number of other

         11  sources, including increased tax receipts, you know

         12  well into the hundreds and hundreds of million

         13  dollars --

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: And so the

         15  very first property tax relief we're going to give,

         16  is $44 million to the Absentee Landlords?

         17                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Well, Ms. Angelo

         18  did you have a response to that?

         19                 MS. ANGELO: Yes. Larian Angelo,

         20  Finance Division.

         21                 In the January plan, the Mayor took

         22  $44 million out of the plan because he did not plan

         23  to implement the Absentee Landlord Surcharge.  And

         24  the Department of Finance to date has been unable to

         25  provide a list that they feel is accurate of
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          2  absentee landlords.  Now, it's already March and the

          3  problem is, if the bills are sent out now, the

          4  entire 25 percent surcharge will have to be paid

          5  over the next two months.  So, for say a typical

          6  class 1 home, which has a tax bill of about $2,000,

          7  someone could be looking at a $500 charge.

          8                 This Council on numerous occasions

          9  has talked about the problems the Department of

         10  Finance has had in figuring out what people's

         11  addresses are and we hope to work with them in the

         12  next two years to have them generate an accurate

         13  list of absentee landlords.

         14                 In fact, they have made some

         15  movement.  They essentially followed the Council's

         16  direction, given the bill that we passed and had to

         17  do outreach and got an excellent response. But they

         18  still feel there are about 30,000 households that

         19  appear to be absentee landlords but in fact may not

         20  be.

         21                 So that rather than send out

         22  inaccurate bills to 30,000 people, and very large

         23  charges to 70,000 people, this bill's start date

         24  will be delayed several years until the Department

         25  of Finance, working with the Council, can find a way
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          2  to administer a tax bill.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: What possible

          4  reason is there for putting it off to Fiscal 2007?

          5                 Why would it possibly take that long

          6  for Finance to figure out a way to administer this?

          7                 What was wrong with the suggestion

          8  that was made to Commissioner Stark when she was

          9  here, that they merely do this by having people

         10  affirm that they are or aren't and using that as the

         11  list?  I'm just absolutely flabbergasted.

         12                 MS. ANGELO: I think that that's

         13  probably a conversation we need to have with the

         14  Commissioner.  But again, the thought was that

         15  rather than send out inaccurate bills to as many as

         16  30,000 people, and sending 70,000 people a bill that

         17  they do indeed owe, but a bill that they would have

         18  to pay that was very large and have to pay it over

         19  only a couple of months, that we would delay the

         20  implementation of this and work with the Department

         21  of Finance to find out a way of doing outreach.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: You know, I'm

         23  not happy, but I can at least understand the logic

         24  behind delaying it for one year, all right?  Because

         25  they owe you that double bang of getting a bill in
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          2  June and then another bill in July.  I mean, I don't

          3  like it, I, quite frankly, think that Finance has

          4  complicated something that need not be complicated.

          5  I know we've had this conversation. I think it's

          6  outrageous, and the way it plays out to me again is

          7  that the first property tax relief we give is to

          8  absentee landlords, who are the least deserving of

          9  people in terms of the list of people I'd like to

         10  give property tax money back to, and there are a lot

         11  of them I'd like to give property tax back to, but I

         12  don't understand Fiscal Year 2007.  You know, it's

         13  like say to them you're right, this is complicated,

         14  and it's not.

         15                 MS. ANGELO: Well, it was the position

         16  of this Council when that legislation was passed,

         17  that this was good, sound and just tax policy.  And

         18  I suspect the Council still believes that.  But the

         19  problem is it is the job of the Executive to

         20  implement.  And when they have a hard time

         21  implementing, they have a hard time implementing.

         22                 At this point it is a law that goes

         23  totally by local authority and I think if it should

         24  be the case that next year Department of Finance can

         25  demonstrate that they can implement this, the
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          2  Council would be free to change the date once again.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  Well, I'm not

          4  going to beat it into the ground but I think it's

          5  clear that Finance doesn't want to implement.

          6  Because if they did, they would, they would have

          7  done so months ago.  They would have taken perfectly

          8  sound advice that they got in this room with

          9  Commissioner Spark sitting in that chair.  Okay,

         10  they don't want this tax.  They don't want to

         11  implement it, and they are using bureaucratic

         12  nonsense to stop it.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Council Member

         14  Gallagher.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER GALLAGHER: Thank you,

         16  Mr. Chairman. You know, Council Member Fidler, thank

         17  you for joining the Republican delegation's call for

         18  property tax relief.

         19                 Larian, I really don't have a

         20  question for you, I just had a comment.  First, the

         21  Republican delegation, the three Amigos voted no on

         22  this tax increase.  We thought it was a bad tax

         23  then.  We think it's a bad tax now.  Clearly, I

         24  think what some of my colleagues miss in this debate

         25  when they talk about who they're attending to get
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          2  this "absentee landlord", you really don't often get

          3  that individual.  What you do get is the tenants.

          4                 As you know, this property tax was

          5  geared towards two- and three-family homes, which

          6  are not subject to rent stabilization laws and often

          7  this increase would have been passed along to the

          8  tenants and the residents of our Districts and they

          9  would not have been happy.  So I think that this is

         10  a good thing.  The one thing I am disappointed in is

         11  that I'm glad that we're postponing it, but I would

         12  have much rather be repealing it at this point.  I

         13  would hope that my colleagues would join me in a

         14  call for the repeal of this tax.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: You would like to

         16  repeal all the taxes though, wouldn't you?

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER GALLAGHER: Yes,

         18  absolutely.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Okay.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER GALLAGHER: So, having

         21  said that, you know I feel justified in my vote with

         22  regards to the tax, and especially in light of the

         23  things that the Chairman had said because these are

         24  the things that the three Republicans in the City

         25  Council talked about on that vote that there would
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          2  be additional revenue from other sources and the tax

          3  numbers would come in higher than anticipated and

          4  the $45 million would be not necessary at this time.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Council Member

          6  Lopez.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  I just wanted

          8  to make a comment that I think that we are missing

          9  the point here.  I think that if it's a tax, that we

         10  should not repeal it, this one particularly, when

         11  this is a taxation for businesses that are operating

         12  in the City of New York, making money in the City of

         13  New York and not paying the appropriate taxation to

         14  the City of New York for the revenues that they are

         15  getting into the pocket. Then if it's a tax that we

         16  should not repeal, it is this one.

         17                 The second thing that I want to

         18  indicate is that I think we are missing the point

         19  here, but it's the most important part.  The

         20  Department of Finance has discovered in front of our

         21  eyes, a piece of information that is very critical.

         22  It has to do with the lack of adequate information

         23  that we have in the Department, in a time in which

         24  technology controls our lives, the Department cannot

         25  determine who is an absentee landlord, which brings
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          2  to our attention the following point:

          3                 What to me is the biggest problem

          4  here and the reality for me is on a scandal, that we

          5  in our Department, the Department of Finance of the

          6  City of New York, do not have a state-of-the-art to

          7  determine who owns the property in this City that

          8  can be said just by a click of a button, like my

          9  colleague Gale Brewer said, who is an absentee

         10  landlord and who is not, in order to put appropriate

         11  taxation where taxation belongs. That's what they

         12  issue is in here.

         13                 Another question is if this taxation

         14  is appropriate or not because that is a mute point.

         15  Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Council Member

         17  Oddo.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: I think that

         19  warm sensation that Council Member Gallagher just

         20  had is called validation.  And if Council Member

         21  Fidler is right and this whole folderol (phonetic)

         22  about the implementation of this tax is the

         23  Department of Finance or the Administration's

         24  philosophy that it's a bad idea, then I say the

         25  Administration has gotten one right.  This was a
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          2  pass-through tax, what is a bad idea in 2003 will be

          3  a bad idea in 2007.  This is short of the Edsal of

          4  tax policy and we should just pull the plug.

          5                 My question, Larian, is, when we

          6  passed this with $45 million for that year, how much

          7  did we roll-over to the next Fiscal Year at the same

          8  time that we added the exclamation point on the $45

          9  million tax?

         10                 MS. ANGELO: I believe last year we

         11  rolled $1.5 billion.  But let me also say that that

         12  $1.5 billion we rolled, helped to balance the Budget

         13  this year.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: And that $1.5

         15  million jumped --

         16                 MS. ANGELO: Billion.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: That $1.5

         18  billion jumped, it was originally going to be $600

         19  million, it was going to be $800 million, it was

         20  going to be $400 million, it was going to be $1

         21  billion, it was going to be $1.1 billion and it

         22  turned out to be $1.5 plus billion and we had on top

         23  of that a nice little $45 million exclamation point.

         24                 MS. ANGELO: That's correct.  I just

         25  wanted to add to some of the comments made here.  I
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          2  think that what is most unfortunate, about the

          3  Absentee Landlord Tax, is that the inability to

          4  administer this tax goes back to the Department of

          5  Finance's inability to do outreach appropriately and

          6  get people signed up for the STAR Tax Credit.  That

          7  100,000 people who were questionable, we didn't know

          8  whether they were absentees or simply people who

          9  were owner-occupied and had not signed up for STAR,

         10  was really the most unfortunate part I believe, of

         11  this whole incident.  That had appropriate outreach

         12  been done for the five years that STAR was in

         13  existence, in fact 100,000 New Yorkers would have

         14  gotten a tax reduction to which they are entitled

         15  and which is paid for by the State.  So consider it

         16  the most unfortunate part.  And perhaps the most

         17  fortunate, because as we work with the Department of

         18  Finance to find a way to implement this tax, we will

         19  sign up more and more of those folks who deserve

         20  STAR and are entitled to STAR for the STAR benefits.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: I think that

         22  they are an unfortunate lot and their bad luck is

         23  probably equal to what perhaps exceeded slightly by

         24  the folks who are tenants in places like Staten

         25  Island, that had a past due tax on them.  Those of
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          2  us in the outer boroughs got that message loud and

          3  clearly from our constituents.  Thank you, Alan.

          4  Thank you Ms. Angelo.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Council Member

          6  Provenzano.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Thank you.

          8                 I would like to comment on the

          9  Absentee Landlord Tax.  I  think most of what I

         10  would like to say has already been said, so I will

         11  try and be brief since I see everybody is

         12  disappearing.

         13                 I did vote for it originally, but my

         14  feeling later on was that it was misrepresented to

         15  me when we discussed it.  A lot of what was said was

         16  stuff like, well you know a lot of the absentee

         17  landlords live up in West Chester, they live in

         18  Jersey, they live blah-blah-blah.  So these are

         19  folks that we will be taxing who are not being taxed

         20  as City residents.  As it turned out when the feed-

         21  back came from folks in my community, most of the

         22  absentee landlords in my community, which is similar

         23  to  Jimmy's and probably part of Dennis' is that

         24  these folks are people that live in the community

         25  and may have one or two additional two or three
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          2  family homes, so they are being penalized for owning

          3  additional property.  So I think it backfired and I

          4  for one would just like to just see it go away.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN:  I think it's the

          6  fault of that guy on TV at 3:00 in the morning, you

          7  know, no money down.

          8                 Council Member Fidler.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: I'm not going

         10  to entertain a debate on the merits of the Absentee

         11  Landlord Tax because whether or not the people who

         12  own the houses still live in the community, they

         13  should not be entitled to the same benefit that you

         14  or I do who actually own the one- family home.

         15                 I would ask you this Larian, have we

         16  ever come to an estimate of how much property tax

         17  money we would be giving back if we provided

         18  complete relief for the tax increase to seniors

         19  living on fixed income, how much money that would

         20  be?

         21                 MS. ANGELO: Approximately $50 million

         22  dollars.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Oh, so it's

         24  about the same amount of money we are about to write

         25  off to the absentee landlords.
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          2                 Seniors living on a fixed income,

          3  absentee landlords, it's a no-brainer to me.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Council Member

          5  Brewer.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Thank you.

          7                 Larian, it's my original question

          8  that is probably more for the Finance Department,

          9  but for those of us who did send out notes, per

         10  their request, indicating this tax was forthcoming

         11  got some response.  How do we, who's in charge,

         12  what's the policy for telling folks what the change

         13  of policy is?  Because I think it is quite confusing

         14  for the absentee owner.

         15                 MS. ANGELO: I will call the

         16  Department of Finance and see if there is anything

         17  we can do to help them do outreach to make sure

         18  people are not confused.  However, what will happen,

         19  I mean they will get no additional bill --

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Right.

         21                 MS. ANGELO: -- And there will be no

         22  additional charge, come July.  So if you assume that

         23  people simply pay the tax bill they are given and

         24  don't really volunteer to pay more, there shouldn't

         25  be too much confusion.  But, you know, we will
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          2  certainly try and work with them.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Okay.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: I don't see those

          5  absentee landlords calling in and saying where's our

          6  extra bill. So I agree, it's probably not going to

          7  be a problem.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  On the West

          9  Side they might do that.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Really?

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: They want to

         12  know what's going on.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Okay.

         14                 Council Member Sears.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: You know, I

         16  just wanted to say that so many of the illegal

         17  conversion problems that have really and truly

         18  plagued the entire City of New York, I think I could

         19  say openly and honestly, most of them come from the

         20  absentee landlords who do not live in the City, they

         21  don't live in the communities, they are charging you

         22  soarious prices for rents, they are the ones who are

         23  putting mattresses on the floor.  Now I agree, the

         24  good landlords, those who own these properties, it's

         25  not a punitive thing.
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          2                 However, we must not lose sight of

          3  the fact that if those who live in the communities,

          4  and before I voted on this bill, I actually did

          5  check with those who live in communities and have

          6  one, two and three family homes as an investment and

          7  as a source of income and not one that I spoke to

          8  objected to paying a little bit more because they

          9  certainly are taking care of their homes and they

         10  felt it reasonable and rational.

         11                 I would find it difficult that the

         12  Finance Department and the Administration cannot

         13  keep a record of who is where and what.  So it was

         14  not designed to punish, I don't believe, it was

         15  designed to have a fair tax imposed upon those who

         16  were abusing the citizenry of the City of New York.

         17  That's what it was designed for.

         18                 Years ago people absolutely turned

         19  their faces against the illegal conversions.  Fifty-

         20  nine Boards in the City of New York and there was

         21  about two or three that began to address the issue

         22  of illegal conversions and that is what we have to

         23  deal with and unfortunately the illegal conversions

         24  stem from the absentee landlords and that's what I

         25  think we have to look at.
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          2                 If there needs to be some amendment

          3  to that bill, not voting it out, but some amendment,

          4  then certainly we ought to look at that.  But we

          5  should not remove it and we should not think of it

          6  as punishing senior citizens or anyone else who

          7  lives in the community.  If they are earning income,

          8  they pay tax on it.

          9                 Thank you Mr. Chair.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Council Member

         11  Gennaro.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Thank you,

         13  Mr. Chairman.  Hi, Larian.

         14                 I wish to thank Council Member Fidler

         15  for stating so clearly what I actually came here to

         16  state.  I don't think I could say it as well as he

         17  did, but he certainly makes the argument in a very

         18  compelling way about the much margin needed to take

         19  care of seniors on fixed incomes, than it is to

         20  speak to the issues of absentee landlords. So I wish

         21  to be associated with the remarks of Council Member

         22  Fidler and thank you Mr. Chairman.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: You're welcome.

         24  All right, we are now going to entertain questions

         25  on the proposed -- well, actually Council Member
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          2  Lopez on the proposed Madison Avenue BID, but

          3  Council Member Lopez had a particular concern about

          4  that BID, so I just wanted to wait until she

          5  returns.

          6                 Mr. Glader (phonetic) is here to

          7  testify about the Madison Avenue BID and I believe

          8  Council Member Lopez had some questions about it.

          9                 Mr. Glader, do you want to just make

         10  an initial statement about the proposed BID?

         11                 MR. GLADER: Sure. Thank you. Good

         12  morning, Chairman Weprin and Members of the Finance

         13  Committee.  My name is George Glader I am Assistant

         14  Commissioner at the Department of Small Business

         15  Services.

         16                 SBS supports the City Council

         17  Resolution setting forth the date, time and place

         18  for the Public Hearing concerning the expansion of

         19  the Madison Avenue Business Improvement District in

         20  the Borough of Manhattan.  The Madison Avenue BIDs

         21  has successfully completed the required public

         22  outreach effort.  SBS has reviewed the boundaries of

         23  the existing BID and its expansion area and found

         24  the boundaries to be acceptable.  SBS will arrange

         25  for the publication of the Summary of the City
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          2  Council Resolution and have it published at least

          3  once in the City Record.

          4                 The Madison Avenue BID will mail a

          5  Summary of the Resolution to all affected property

          6  owners, as required by the BID law.  Thank you Mr.

          7  Chairman.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Okay.  Council

          9  Member Lopez, I believe you had a couple of

         10  questions on the Madison Avenue BID, if you could

         11  ask them of Mr. Glader now.  She was just surveying

         12  the residents in the area.

         13                 MR. GLADER: Okay.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  Your

         15  particular BID have a surcharge put to the tenants

         16  of the area or not, in regards to the tenants that

         17  own the property.

         18                 MR. GLADER: The residential charge in

         19  this BID is one dollar per residential unit or per

         20  residential building, I should say.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Per residential

         22  building, no per apartment.

         23                 MR. GLADER: No, not per apartment,

         24  unless it's a condominium.  If it's a condominium

         25  then each lot in the condominium gets a one dollar

                                                            51

          1  COMMITTEE ON FINANCE

          2  charge.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Okay.  I need

          4  you to know that I'm getting inundated in my office

          5  by tenants who are very much against this idea of

          6  beginning charging them for the BIDs expansions or

          7  the BIDs work.  I personally have a problem with

          8  that.  I have a problem not for now but for a long

          9  time in which I do not understand how we are going

         10  to institute the policy of double taxation, even if

         11  it's a dollar. Because that to me go to the heart of

         12  a fundamental question.  If this area receive the

         13  sanitary services are they supposed to receive in

         14  regard of collecting garbage and dealing with all of

         15  the problems that may come and the BID provide all

         16  those services.  Or does the BID create an

         17  incredible environment to help the business to grow.

         18  This issue of bringing taxation to tenants is

         19  problematic and we need to deal with this problem

         20  and figure out how we are going to resolve it.

         21                 I am having another BID in my

         22  District who is also proposing to put double

         23  taxation in the tenants where they own the

         24  apartments, the co-ops or the condominiums.  Then I

         25  want to invite you to look at this very carefully.
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          2  I think that this is a mistake and I don't think

          3  that it's a good idea for the BIDs to come with this

          4  proposal.

          5                 MR. GLADER: Well, the one dollar

          6  charge in this case is because under the law every

          7  benefited property must be charged so that they've

          8  really made the amounts for the residential portion

          9  very di minimis, as small as you can get it, is one

         10  dollar.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: The problem I

         12  have with this is the whole concept of making

         13  residents paying taxes for the services that the

         14  City deliver to them, and then now we come in with

         15  this idea and put in another tax on top of that

         16  where they are supposed to receive their services no

         17  matter what.

         18                 MR. GLADER: Well, anything that BID

         19  does, must be supplemental to what the City

         20  provides.  They will continue to receive the same

         21  police protection from the City, the same sanitation

         22  services from the City.  What the BID will provide

         23  will supplement that, it will be extra, in addition

         24  to.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: I am aware of
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          2  that part.  The problem that I have is in this

          3  concept that is beginning to develop, one of the

          4  BIDs that I have in my area is charging more than

          5  one dollar.  And then this is opening a door that is

          6  very difficult for me to look at it, and not speak

          7  on it, and begin trying to figure it out how are we

          8  going to resolve this. The issue in question is

          9  because we are expanding the BIDs in areas where the

         10  original intention was to stimulate the economy with

         11  these particular businesses that were in that area.

         12  Now we are talking about a different concept.  And

         13  we're modifying the original concept to expand these

         14  BIDs in areas where the buildings are basically

         15  residential and people own these properties.  This

         16  is problematic.  I share this view with my

         17  colleagues. I'm sharing this with you. I am having a

         18  problem in my office, I am getting a lot of calls in

         19  regards to this and the tenants and the owners of

         20  these properties are getting very upset.

         21                 MR. GLADER: Well in this particular

         22  case, the Madison Avenue case, that problem does not

         23  exist.  And we are working with the groups and they

         24  are working with you and we don't bring it to the

         25  Council until we feel that there is a major amount
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          2  of support for that BID to move forward.  And we

          3  will definitely and the BID sponsors will deal with

          4  your office, the other Council people, the Community

          5  Boards and the community, to make sure that there is

          6  sufficient public outreach that everybody knows why

          7  this BID is being formed, what it might be charging,

          8  and we won't move forward until there is support for

          9  whatever that plan may be.                   COUNCIL

         10  MEMBER LOPEZ: I don't have any more comments.  I

         11  think that I have put my concerns on the record and

         12  I think that from the point of view of financing and

         13  for the point of view of taxation, the Council needs

         14  to look into this.  We have a problem here with this

         15  and I don't know how we are going to resolve it, but

         16  we need to look into this and find a solution to

         17  this problem.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: You know I think

         19  what Mr. Glader is saying is that for a dollar,

         20  these residents are getting additional services you

         21  know, that obviously is an amount of money that no

         22  one would object to.  I think the intention was not

         23  to tax the residential tenants but since they are,

         24  it's part of the BIDs, by law they would have to be

         25  taxed something, so the idea is just to give a
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          2  nominal fee to meet that requirement at the same

          3  time they would be benefiting from the additional

          4  services in the BID as well.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: I understand

          6  that Mr. Chairman but the residents did not ask for

          7  this expansion to begin with.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: But they haven't

          9  asked --

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: They didn't ask

         11  for the services and the second thing --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: No, but they'll

         13  be given the same notice as the businesses and they

         14  have a right to object to it or not to object to it,

         15  based on that.  Isn't that true Mr. Glader?

         16                 MR. GLADER: Yes, if they are property

         17  owners they can formally object.  Yes.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Yes.  I know

         19  about the procedure but we are talking about two

         20  different things here, oranges and apples.  The

         21  businesses benefit by the whole intention of the BID

         22  and they benefit because they increase their

         23  revenues, by having an area that is attractive and

         24  people feel safe and is taking care and that was the

         25  original purpose of the BID to begin with.
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          2                 It was never intended to create a

          3  two-tier system, which is what we are beginning to

          4  create now, with this question of residents being

          5  put into this situation.  I think that this two-tier

          6  system that we are moving forward by one dollar is

          7  going to come back to haunt us and putting this as

          8  the original initial defaction (sic) is a bad idea,

          9  I think we are setting a precedent here and I don't

         10  think that we should do this, even if it's five

         11  cents, I don't think we should do this.  That was

         12  not the purpose of BIDs, that was not the philosophy

         13  behind, and this is totally changing the way that

         14  this BIDs were created and for what they were

         15  created.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: We hear your

         17  objection.  It's not a financial objection, it's a

         18  policy objection and it is taken into consideration,

         19  but at the same time we'll hear from proposed

         20  objectives at the hearing and during the notice

         21  process, because there will be an option for those

         22  residents to object to the creation of the BID.  So

         23  it's not a question of not knowing about it, they

         24  will be notified and they will have an opportunity

         25  to object if they feel from a policy point of view
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          2  or what's right or not right point of view, to

          3  object to it.

          4                 Any other questions on the Madison

          5  Avenue BID? Okay, I think we may have lost our

          6  quorum.  Hold on.  Okay, we are not going to recess

          7  but we're going to  --

          8                 Mr. Glader, are the notices ready to

          9  go out?  They are. Okay. The notices will be going

         10  out shortly.  As I mentioned, we have an April 21st

         11  at 10:00 a.m. Hearing.  I would urge my colleagues

         12  to stay here, those that are Members, we need a

         13  quorum. Mr. Fidler. Oh.  We need twelve for a

         14  quorum.

         15                 Call the four items together, the two

         16  Preconsidered, the MN- 3 and the Madison Avenue BID.

         17                 Call the roll.

         18                 COUNCIL CLERK: Weprin.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Aye.

         20                 COUNCIL CLERK: Lopez.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Aye.

         22                 COUNCIL CLERK: Provenzano.

         23                 (No response.).

         24                 COUNCIL CLERK: Quinn.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Aye.
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          2                 COUNCIL CLERK: Rivera.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER RIVERA: Aye.

          4                 COUNCIL CLERK: Brewer.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Aye.

          6                 COUNCIL CLERK: Comrie.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Aye.

          8                 COUNCIL CLERK: DeBlasio.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER DEBLASIO: Aye.

         10                 COUNCIL CLERK: Fidler.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Are we voting

         12  on all the items?

         13                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: All the items.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Then may I be

         15  excused to explain my vote?  I guess that's a yes?

         16                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Yes.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: I have to tell

         18  you that since the day that we voted to raise

         19  property taxes in this Committee, I have not been

         20  here as unhappily as I am now.  If I had the

         21  opportunity to amend the Budget Modification on the

         22  issue with the District Attorneys, I would do so.  I

         23  realize that would be kind of grand-standing for me

         24  to vote no and so I won't.  And I will vote for the

         25  Budget Modification because there are things in it
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          2  that are so necessary.

          3                 However, in good conscience I can not

          4  and I will not vote for the Preconsidered Intro.

          5  Delaying implementation of the Absentee Landlord

          6  Surcharge until 2007.  I would have probably voted

          7  yes with a great deal of reluctance if it were a

          8  one- year delay, just so that people didn't get

          9  back- to- back whacks on the property tax bill.  I

         10  think it is absolutely unconscionable that the first

         11  property tax money that we are giving back is to

         12  absentee landlords and not to senior citizens living

         13  on fixed- incomes.  This is just wrong and I vote no

         14  on that Preconsidered Intro. And aye on all the

         15  others.

         16                 COUNCIL CLERK: Gennaro.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Pass.

         18                 COUNCIL CLERK: Gioia.

         19                 (No response.)

         20                 COUNCIL CLERK: Jackson

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: I vote yes.

         22                 COUNCIL CLERK: Sears.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: I pass for a

         24  moment, thank you.

         25                 COUNCIL CLERK: Oddo.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: May I be

          3  temporarily excused to explain my vote?

          4                 I would just like to associate myself

          5  with the comments of Council Member Fidler with

          6  respect to the District Attorneys and I will

          7  reluctantly --  I will -- hello. It's that

          8  seven-second delay ordered by Council Member Gioia

          9  on the.  A seven-second delay.

         10                 Anyway, I would like to associate

         11  myself with the comments of Council Member Fidler

         12  with respect to the District Attorneys office and I

         13  will reluctantly vote yes on each of these items and

         14  I would just caution my colleagues again when we sit

         15  down over the next several weeks and we fight for

         16  restorations and we fight against cuts and we say

         17  this guys a bad guy and this guy's a bad guy, we

         18  should look at ourselves in the mirror and know that

         19  maybe there would be more money for those child

         20  clinics, maybe there would be more money for those

         21  engine companies if we all acted a little bit more

         22  responsibly in terms of controlling Medicaid, so I

         23  vote yes.

         24                 COUNCIL CLERK: Provenzano.

         25                 (No response.)
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          2                 COUNCIL CLERK: Gennaro.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: I vote aye on

          4  all the items with the exception of the delay of the

          5  Absentee Landlords Surcharge, on that I vote no.

          6                 COUNCIL CLERK: Sears.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: I vote aye on

          8  all except the Absentee Landlord.  I vote no on that

          9  bill.  Thank you.

         10                 COUNCIL CLERK: Felder.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Thank you.

         12                 Can I be excused to explain my vote?

         13                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Yes, you may.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: I vote aye on

         15  everything and I want to applaud the delay on the

         16  Absentee Surcharge.  I think government very often

         17  is criticized for not getting done the things done

         18  on time, efficiently, is finally doing something

         19  right. I hope they delay it this time, next time and

         20  the time thereafter. Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: We'll hold the

         22  roll open because there are a number of members that

         23  are not here.

         24                 But, Council Member Gallagher.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER GALLAGHER: Thank you,
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          2  Council Member Felder for letting me vote last

          3  today.  I certainly appreciate it.

          4                 I am going to be voting aye on all

          5  coupled items, but I just want to say with regards

          6  to the Absentee Landlord Surcharge, I do hope that

          7  we in the Council look to repeal that, for the

          8  reasons I stated earlier today.  Thank you.

          9                 COUNCIL CLERK: All items are adopted

         10  by a vote of 15 in the affirmative, zero negative

         11  and no abstentions.

         12                 Council Members, please sign the

         13  Committee Reports.

         14                 The Preconsidered Intro. on Absentee

         15  Landlords is adopted by a vote of 12 in the

         16  affirmative, three in the negative and no

         17  abstentions.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you.

         19  Please sign the Committee Reports.

         20                 Okay, we are going to keep the roll

         21  open for ten minutes for those that have not voted

         22  yet.  Otherwise the meeting is adjourned.

         23                 (Meeting concluded at 12:00 p.m.)

         24
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